SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
March 21, 2012
5:03 p.m

5:03:12 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Stednman called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 5:03 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co- Chair
Senat or Bert Stedman, Co-Chair
Senator Lesil McQuire, Vice-Chair
Senat or Johnny Ellis

Senat or Denni s Egan

Senat or Donny d son

Senat or Joe Thonmas

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Pat Branson, Myor, City of Kodiak; Jay Sutherland, Menber,
Board of Directors, Alaska Mwose Federation; Dr. John N
Davies, Sr. Researcher, Cold dimate Housing Research
Cent er ( CCHRO) ; Larry  Devil biss, Mayor , Mat - Su; Judi
Andrijanoff, State Library Advocate; Peg Foster, Board
Menber, Friends of the Talkeetna Library; Curt Ledford,
Chairman, Sitka Library Association; Paul Brown, Project
Director, Al aska Leaders Series; Alyson Cooper, Coach, Grl
Scouts Robotics Teans; Bill Howe, Miintenance Manager,
Tanana Valley State Fair; Jeff Wltzin, Special Projects
Coor di nat or, Tanana Chiefs  Conference; Linda Wnne,
President, Alaska Library Association; Kate Troll, Self;
Joan O Keef e, Executive Di rector, Sout heast Al aska
| ndependent Living (SAIL); Delana Johnson, Mayor, City of
Pal mer; Fern Spaulding, Talkeetna Build-A-Plane; Peggy
Brown, Executive Director, Alaska Network on Donestic
Violence and Sexual Assault; Brenda Stanhill, Executive
Director, Interior Alaska Center for Non-Violent Living;
M chael Horton, Behavioral Health Director, Copper R ver



Native Association; Paula Vrana, CEO Copper River Native
Associ ati on; Marie Darlin, Self; Doug Bri dges, Board
Menmber, Alaska Mbility Coalition; Jonas Lanb, Sel f,
Juneau; Representative Tamry WIson; Representative Anna
Fai rcl ough; Dee Longenbough, Self, Juneau;

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

M chael Hawfield, Board Menber, Al aska Hi storical Society,
Honer; Daisy Lee Bitter, Al aska Peony G owers Association,
Honer; Sue Paul sen, Self, Petersburg; Bill Foster, Self,
Sitka; Mchael Slone, Self, None; A an Rockwood, Self,
Ket chi kan; Ri ck Hauver, State Parks Advisory Board,
Ketchikan; Ruth Dulin, Self, Ketchikan; Kevin Gadsey,
| ndependent Living Advocate, Southeast Al aska | ndependent
Li vi ng, Ket chi kan; Bess Cdark, Community Connections,
Ket chi kan; Jim Sanpson, Fairbanks Pipeline Training Center,
Fai rbanks; M ke Sexton, Executive Director, Mechani cal
Contractors  of Fai r banks, Fai r banks; Marie  Schm dt,
Director, Fairbanks Tennis Association, Fairbanks; Mariann
Hof f man, Fairbanks Tennis Association, Fairbanks; denn
Juday, Self, Fairbanks; Tom Gant, Self, Fairbanks; Jan
Dawe, Self, Fairbanks; Sean Lee, Self, Fairbanks; Travis
Eckhoff, Self, Fairbanks; Donald Pitts, University of
Al aska Engineering Facility, Fairbanks; Marvin Hassebrock,
O nes Pond, Fairbanks; Dr. Alex Hills, Prof essor  of
Engi neering, Carnegie Mllon University, Palner; D anne
Christiansen, Executive Director, Dance Theatre Fairbanks,
Fai rbanks; David Levy, Executive Director, Al aska Mbility
Coalition; WMark Luttrell, Self, Seward; Ann Chiccudus,
Self, Seward; Judy Brakel, Self, Gustavus; Sue Kent, Self,
Sol dot na; Dani el O Hara, Mayor , Bri st ol Bay Borough,
Naknek; Vernon Boyles, Self, Fairbanks; David Kasser, Visit
Anchor age, Anchorage; Eugene Paul, Tribal Chief, Holy Cross
Tribal Council, Holy Cross; Joy Huntington, Tanana Chiefs
Conference, Tanana; Carl Lare, Executive Director, Native
Village of Fort Yukon, Fort Yukon; Elana Rath, Vol unteer,
Alaska Brain Injury Network, Ketchikan; Ron ElIlingworth,
President, Alaska Peony Gowers Association, North Pole;
Sheryl Charly, Mnto Village Council, Mnto; Patricia
Part now, Anthropol ogist and Educator, Anchorage; Blythe
Marston, Self, Anchorage; Megan Bunch, Self, Fairbanks;
Chri st opher Bunch, Sel f, Fai r banks; Colin Underwood,

Community and Prof essi onal Menber , Health Information
Systens Soci ety; Doug Johnson, Director, Busi ness
Devel opnent, Ccean Renewable Power Conpany, Anchorage;

Richard Dow ing, Senior Vice-President, GCI Al aska; Aves

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 2 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



Thonpson, Executive Director, Al aska Trucking Association,
Anchorage; Bruce Parham Board of Directors, Cook Inlet
Hi stori cal Soci ety, Anchor age; Orson Smith, Engi neer,
Seward; David Patterson, State-Affiliate Partner, First
Robotics Programs, Anchorage; Terri Dr aeger, St udent ,
University of Alaska Anchorage, Anchorage; Catherine Call,
Menber , Advi sory  Board, UAA  School of Engi neeri ng,
Anchorage; John Crews, Chairman, Al aska Vocational and
Techni cal Center Statewi de [Industrial Advi sory Board;
Arvi nd Phukan, Self, Anchorage; Ryan Buchhol dt, President,
St udent Body, University of Al aska, Anchor age; Loi s
Epst ei n, Sel f, Anchor age; Heat her Arnett, St at ewi de
Adm ni strator, Association of Alaska Housing Authorities,
Anchorage; Arliss Sturgel ewski, Sheldon Jackson Board,
Anchorage; Lindsey Whitt, Director, Public Relations, Port
of Anchorage, Anchorage; Ws Vandermartin, Vice-President
and General Manager, Al aska Basic |Industries, Anchorage;
MIlie Johnson, Chairman, Voyage to Excell ence; Pet e
St okes, Consulting Petroleum Engineer, Anchorage; Lindsay
Haj duk, Sierra Cub, Anchorage; Sean Ruddy, President,
Kachemak Shellfish Mariculture Association; Jack Colonell,
Self, Anchorage; Sandra Mrris, Self, Anchorage; Becky
Hassenbroek, Self, Fairbanks; Gace Anmundsen, Student,
University of Alaska, Anchorage; Row and Powers, Student,
Uni versity of Al aska Fairbanks, Fairbanks; Joseph Stribrny,
Student, University of Alaska Fairbanks, Fairbanks; Ty
War ddel |, St udent , Uni versity of Al aska Fai r banks,
Fai rbanks; denn Villeneuve, Self, Fairbanks; Ron |wouye,
Friends of the University of Al aska Miseum Fairbanks;
Jennifer Jolis, Pr esi dent, Breadline Inc., Fai r banks;
Mt chel | Hal ver son, St udent , Uni versity of Al aska
Fai r banks, Fairbanks; Sanmuel Dye, Student, University of
Al aska Fai rbanks, Fairbanks; Patricia Jinx Witaker, Self,
Fai r banks; John Lysen, Chairman, Al aska State Park Northern
Region Citizen Advisory Board; Mchael Golub, Student,
University of Alaska, Fairbanks; Lissa Hughes, Northern
Al aska Environnmental Center, Fairbanks; Mary Nordale, Self,
Fai r banks; Karen Lane, General Manager, 2014 Arctic Wnter
Ganes Host Society; Susan Kessler, Executive Director,
Al aska Center for Children and Adults, Fairbanks (ACCA);
Jono Stewart, Pr oj ect Manager , Fai r banks Econom ¢
Devel opnent Corporation; Mke Shutetz, Facilities Project
Manager, University of Al aska Fairbanks, Fairbanks; Gary
Laursen, Director, Honors Program University of Al aska
Fai r banks, Fairbanks; M ke Powers, Chief Executive Oficer,
Fai rbanks  Menori al Hospi t al and Denali Cent er; John
Ri ngstad, Self, Fairbanks; Steve Mtchell, Vice President,

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 3 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



Fai rbanks Drama Association and Children's Theatre; Peggy
Fur geson, Fai rbanks Drama Association and Children's
Theatre; Jeff Jacobson, Chief of Staff, Fairbanks North
Star Borough; Jack Wllard, Fire Chief, Chena Coldstream
Fire and Rescue; Kent Karns, North Ski Cub of Fairbanks,

Fai r banks; Emly Annis, Fai r banks Resources  Agency,

Fai r banks; Gregory Newby, Di rector, Arctic Regi on
Superconputing Center, University of Alaska Fairbanks,

Fai r banks; Cerald Meyers, Sel f, Fai r banks; St ewart

Ferguson, Chief Information Oficer, Al aska Native Tribal

Heal th Consortium Fairbanks; Jim Barnett, President, Cook
Inlet H storical Society, Anchorage; Jim Boltz, College of

Engineering and M nes Advisory and Devel opnent Council,

University of Alaska of Alaska Fairbanks, Anchorage; Bob
Henry, Chairman, Al aska Mbose Federation; G oria Chythl ook,

Self, Grdwood; Sue Linford, Chair, Comm ssion for the Port

of Anchorage, Anchorage; @Gary dson, Self, Anchorage;

Ki nberly Wody, Executive Director, Angelus Menorial Park
Cenetery, Anchor age; Mar ch Runner, Gal ena Bi omass
Commttee, (Galena; Robert Baldwin, Alaska Science and
Technol ogy of Anchorage, Anchorage; Connie Snipe, Executive
Director, Center for Community, Sitka; Drew Mrris, Self,

Anchorage; Lexi Fish, Self, Sitka; Louanne Stone, Self,

Anakt uvuk Pass; Esther Hugo, Self, Anaktuvuk Pass; Lee
Karasi ewi cz, Self, Anaktuvuk Pass; Chelsea Mrry, Self,

Anakt uvuk Pass; Audrey Shel don, Self, Anaktuvuk Pass; Janes
Nageak, Self, Anaktuvuk Pass; Dr. Lisa Koronkiew ez, Self,

Anakt uvuk Pass; Devlin Mekiana, Self, Anaktuvuk Pass; Jal en
Shel don, Sel f, Anaktuvuk Pass; Freida Rullind, Sel f,

Anakt uvuk Pass; Just Jensen, Self, Anaktuvuk Pass; Col by
Root, Self, Anaktuvuk Pass; Josie Mkiana, Self, Anaktuvuk
Pass; Dr. Tom N cewonder, Self, Anchorage; Janette Cadi eux,

Wal kabl e Community Project Conmttee, Cooper Landing; Linda
Behnken, Executive Director, Al aska Longline Fisherman's
Associ ation; Dorene Deaton, Self, Beaver; Ben Ml uckie,

Self, Hoonah; Angel Bond, Cooper Landing Chanber of

Commerce, Cooper Landing; Rhonda Hubbard, Self, Seward;

Justin Flowers, AVTEC Student, Seward; Joseph Prino, AVTEC
Student, Seward; David Story, Self, Cooper Landing; Steve
Hi cks, Al aska Association of Conservation Districts, Mat-

Su; Dick Zobel, Self, MAT-SU, Charles Parker, Al aska
Village Initiatives, MAT-SU, Pete Wedin, Self, Honer;

Dari us Kasprzak, Owner and Operator, F/V Marona, Kodi ak;

SUMVARY

SB 160 BUDCET: CAPI TAL

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 4 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



5:03: 58 PM

Co-Chair Stednan stated that this was the fifteenth neeting
on the capital budget and discussed the rul es decorum

#sb160
SENATE BILL NO. 160

"An Act nmaking and anendi ng appropriations, including
capi tal appropriations and other appropri ations;
making appropriations to capitalize funds; and
providing for an effective date."

5:05:11 PM

PAT BRANSON, MAYOR, CITY OF KODI AK, testified on behalf of
the city of Kodiak's Capital Inprovenent Projects (CIP)
She pointed out that the $2.5 CIP for pier three was
Kodi ak' s nunber one priority. She also requested $5 nillion
for the pedestrian inprovenent CIP, $1.75 mllion for
synthetic surfacing and establishing a baseball field in
Baranof Park, and a $400,000 request for a fire engine
truck punp.

5:08:39 PM

JAY SUTHERLAND, MEMBER, BQOARD OF DI RECTORS, ALASKA MOOSE
FEDERATI ON, expressed his support for funding to the Al aska
Mbose Federation and discussed the value of the services
that it provided. He stated that record snowfalls this year
had resulted in a significant anobunt of npose sal vage and
poi nted out that the diversionary program was resulting in
| ess vehi cul ar acci dents.

5:09:54 PM

DR. JOHN N DAVIES, SR RESEARCHER, COLD CLI MATE HOUSI NG
RESEARCH CENTER( CCHRC) , testified in support of the
$750, 000 Capital Project Inprovenent and |Information System
(CAPSIS) request for CCHRC and stated that the interior of
Al aska needed nore affordable energy solutions; energy
efficiency was part of that solution. CCHRC was achieving
30 to 50 percent energy savings with their retrofitting and
50 to 90 percent energy reduction in new construction
proj ects.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 5 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



5:12: 14 PM

LARRY DEVILBISS, MAYOR, WMAT-SU, urged support for WMat-Su's
rail extension to Port MKenzie and the Knick Arm Bridge
and Toll Authority (KABATA) bridge. He nentioned that the
two transportation projects would be very beneficial to the
state and that he anticipated that the rail extension alone
woul d be producing $300 mllion a year in royalties and
revenue for the state.

5:14:11 PM

JUDI ANDRI JANCFF, STATE LI BRARY ADVOCATE, expressed her
support for funding the State Library Archive Muiseum ( SLAM
project. She noted that over the last two |egislative
processes, the state had invested over $30 mllion in
public libraries; the SLAM project wuld increase the
nunber to $50 mllion. She expressed her thankful ness for
the state's effort.

5:15:42 PM

PEG FOSTER, BOARD MEMBER, FRI ENDS OF THE TALKEETNA LI BRARY,
testified in support of funding for a library in Tal keetna
and asked for state matching construction funding for the
Tal keetna, North Pole, Juneau, and Sitka libraries.

5:16: 13 PM

CURT LEDFORD, CHAI RVAN, SI TKA LI BRARY  ASSOCI ATI ON,
testified in support of the library projects in Tal keetna,
Juneau, North Pole, and Sitka. He stated that the libraries
were not fighting anongst thensel ves, but that the
associ ation wanted funding for all the library projects.

5:16: 58 PM

PAUL BROWN, PRQIECT DIRECTOR, ALASKA LEADERS SERIES
expressed his support for funding of the Al aska Leaders
Series and stated that the project participants told the
stories of pioneering Al askan |eaders. He pointed out the
| arge anmount of attention that forner Senator Ted Stevens
was receiving and urged that a national film about the
senator woul d benefit Al aska's inmage.

5:20: 04 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 6 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



ALYSON COOPER, COACH, G RL SCOUTS ROBOTICS TEAMS, testified
in support of funding for the FIRST Robotics program and
t he Juneau Econom c Devel opnent Council. She expl ai ned t hat
FIRST was an international organization that tried to make
mat h, science, and engineering as "cool" and as much fun as
sports. She spoke about the nerits of the program and how
it taught children valuable life skills. She introduced her
troop as follows: Jordan Cooper, Mg Kurland, Andyn
Mul grew Truitt, Jessica Cooper, and Sona Mul grew Truitt.

5:23:35 PM

BILL HOWE, NMAINTENANCE MANAGER, TANANA VALLEY STATE FAIR
expressed support for funding the Tanana Valley State Fair
fair's Americans wth Disabilities Act (ADA) funding
request in the capital budget. He pointed out that there
had been an accessibility report by the Wll Busters
Advocacy Goup and that the fairgrounds needed funds to
address handi cap accessibility issues.

5:25:52 PM

JEFF WELTZIN, SPECI AL PRQJIECTS COORDI NATOR, TANANA CHI EFS
CONFERENCE, testified in support for funding for 38 ClPs
that the Tanana Chiefs Conference Region had submtted to
CAPSIS. He stated that the CIPs would target health
clinics, multi-purpose facilities, and other public safety
infrastructure. He pointed out that the projects would
| everage a considerable amount of federal and private
foundation dollars.

5:27:18 PM

LI NDA  WYNNE, PRESI DENT, ALASKA LI BRARY  ASSOCI ATI ON,
expressed the Association's support for full funding of the
SLAM project. She spoke about +the inportance of the
preserving native historical docunents, information, and
regalia. She noted that the new building would provide
i nproved services to rural, as well as urban areas. She
observed that there was a wealth of information and history
in the state archives, libraries, and nuseuns. She warned
that the inportant records and history of Al aska could be
lost if the building was not constructed.

5:30: 19 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 7 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



KATE TROLL, SELF, testified in support of the $2.7 mllion
for the University of Al aska Fairbanks' (UAF) research for
ocean acidification. She pointed out that the funds had
originally been in the wuniversity's budget, but did not
make it into the capital budget. The funding would be ained
at teaching the industry to adapt to the changing
condi tions brought on by ocean acidification.

5:31: 40 PM

JOAN O KEEFE, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, SOQUTHEAST ALASKA
| NDEPENDENT LIVING (SAIL), testified in support of
increasing the governor's proposed mtching funds for
public transportation from $1 mllion to $3 mllion and
di scussed the services that SAIL provided. She stated that
public transportation was very inportant to the 1,500
el ders and people with disabilities that SAIL served and
that an additional $2 mllion in state funds could generate
up to $10 mllion in federal matching funds.

5:33: 58 PM

DELANA JOHNSON, MAYOR, CITY OF PALMER, voiced her support
for funding Palner's top five CIPs: $2.8 mllion for
repl acenent of a steel water nmain, $780,000 for two fire
station roof repairs and a new fire tanker, and $318, 000
for city facilities inprovenents and the final phase of the
events center expansion.

5:36: 26 PM

FERN SPAULDI NG  TALKEETNA BU LD-A-PLANE, testified in
support of funding for Tal keetna Buil d- A-Pl ane. She pointed
out that the program encouraged young kids to be interested
in aviation, science, technol ogy, engineering, and nath.

5:38:24 PM

PEGGY BROWN, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA NETWORK ON DQAVESTI C
VI OLENCE AND SEXUAL ASSAULT, spoke in support of the Al aska
Housi ng Corporations $1.3 mllion incremental request. She
shared that the funding would be used to establish housing
assistance to approximately 150 donestic violence victins
for one year and shared the inportance of safe affordable
housi ng for victins of donestic violence.

5:39:43 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 8 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



Co-Chair Stednman rem nded the LIOGs that testinony would be
limted to two mnutes per testifier.

M CHAEL HAWFI ELD, BOARD MEMBER, ALASKA HI STORI CAL SCCl ETY,
HOVER (via teleconference), urged his support of funding
the SLAM project. He observed that libraries, archives, and
nmuseuns cont ai ned preci ous docunent s, i temns, and
phot ographs. He pointed that the disrepair in facilities
had | ed to extensive damage to the state's coll ections.

5:41:59 PM

DAl SY LEE BI TTER, ALASKA PEONY GROVWERS ASSOCI ATI ON, HOMER
(via teleconference), expressed her support of funding for
the association's Peony Cut Flower Industry Devel opnment
Initiative. She noted that the federal governnent had
removed the agricultural research services from Al aska and
stated that Al aska was now the only state that did not have
the services. She pointed out that the peony grow ng
conditions were unique in Alaska and that peony farm ng
made good economic sense. She nentioned that a survey by
t he associ ation showed that peony growers had expended over
$1 mllion doing business on the Kenai Peninsul a.

5:43:52 PM

SUE  PAULSEN, SELF, PETERSBURG (via teleconference),
testified in support of fully funding the SLAM project. She
appl auded the state's efforts in assisting small towns wth
50/ 50 funding and spoke about how the new SLAM buil di ng had
been maki ng steady progress towards conpletion. She warned
that the state's cultural heritage, historical archives,
and rnmuseum holdings were in danger due to deteriorating
bui | di ngs

5:45:38 PM

Bl LL FOSTER, SELF, SITKA (via teleconference), urged for
full funding of the library construction grants for the
Tal keetna, North Pole, Juneau, and Sitka libraries. He

pointed out that the libraries were the heart and soul of
the community and that the library in Sitka was running out
of space.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 9 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



Co-Chair Stedman stated that it would be helpful for
testifiers to summarize if they were speaking to capita
projects that had al ready been addressed by prior speakers.

5:48: 28 PM
AT EASE

5:52: 55 PM
RECONVENED

5:53:19 PM

BRENDA STANHI LL, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, | NTERI OR ALASKA CENTER
FOR NON- VI OLENT LIVING testified in support of funding for
the wupgraded conputer/security system and the housing
program building repairs CPs for the Interior Al aska
Center for Non-Violent Living. She discussed the services
that the center provided. She also spoke in support of
Al aska Housing Finance Corporation's appropriation for
public housing in support of donestic violence and sexua

assault victins.

5:55:44 PM

M CHAEL HORTON, BEHAVI ORAL HEALTH DI RECTOR, COPPER RI VER
NATI VE ASSOCI ATI ON, expressed support for the $8 mllion
request for a conbined health facility for the Copper River
Native Association and pointed out that the current
facility was very old and was no |onger adequate. He
nmenti oned that the Association was putting in $11 mllion

whi ch brought the total up to $19 mllion.

5:57:30 PM

PAULA  VRANA, CEQ, COPPER RIVER NATIVE  ASSCOCI ATI ON,
testified in support of the $8 mllion increment for the
Copper River Native Association and clarified that it was
already in the governor's request. She stated that the
project would provide up to 36 new positions in the
d ennallen area and woul d boost the econonmy in the region

She spoke about the services that the Association provided
and its inmportance to the region.

5:59: 00 PM

MARI E DARLI N, SELF, expressed support for increased funding
for the SLAM project and thanked the commttee for the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 10 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



support that the project had received so far. She related
that construction costs were currently |ow and thought that
getting the project farther along during the current year
woul d save noney in the |long run.

6: 00: 44 PM

DOUG BRI DGES, BOARD MEMBER, ALASKA MOBILITY CQALITION
testified in support of increasing the governor's proposed
mat ching funds for public transportation from$1l mllion to
$3 mllion. He stated that the additional $2 mllion would
allow conmunities across the state to access up to $10
mllion nore in federal funding.

6: 02:43 PM

JONAS LAMB, SELF, JUNEAU, urged support for full funding of
the Library Construction and Maj or Matchi ng Expansi on G ant
Programthis cycle and stated that the program had done
great things. He spoke about the inportance of libraries to
Al askan communities and pointed out that a facility at

D anond Park woul d i ncrease the property val ues and the
quality of life for residents of the Mendenhall Vall ey

ar ea.

6:04:16 PM

M CHAEL SLONE, SELF, NOVE (via teleconference), spoke in
support for restoring the $2.7 mllion for ocean
acidification research at UAF and shared the negative
effects that ocean acidification had on marine life.

6: 05:14 PM

ALAN  ROCKWOOD, SELF, KETCH KAN (via teleconference),
testified in support of funding the Black Sands Beach trai
and stated that the trail was very well used, but was only
accessi ble by boat. He observed that the estinated cost for
the trail was around $600, 000.

6: 06: 23 PM

RI CK HAUVER, STATE PARKS ADVI SORY BOARD, KETCHI KAN (via
tel econference), spoke in support of the Black Sands Beach
trail and added that the trail would neet ADA standards
because it would be accessible by notorized scooters and
wheel chai rs.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 11 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



6: 07:41 PM

RUTH DULIN, SELF, KETCH KAN (via teleconference), urged
support of increasing the governor's proposed matching
funds for public transportation from $1 nmillion to $3
mllion. She stated that the services were limted and did
not extend very far out of Ketchikan.

6: 08: 46 PM

KEVI N GADSEY, | NDEPENDENT LI VI NG ADVOCATE, SOUTHEAST ALASKA
| NDEPENDENT L1 VI NG KETCHI KAN (via t el econf erence),
testified in support of increasing the governor's proposed
mat chi ng funds for public transportation from$1 mllion to
$3 mllion. He felt that $3 nmillion was needed to Kkick-
start transportation opportunities and that it would help
the state access additional federal funding.

6: 10: 27 PM

BESS CLARK, COVWUNI TY CONNECTI ONS, KETCHI KAN (via
tel econference), testified in support of funding for the
Communi ty Connections building for services and operations.
She remarked that significant funding for the project had
al ready been secured.

6:11: 20 PM

JI'M SAMPSON, FAI RBANKS PI PELI NE TRAI NI NG CENTER, FAlI RBANKS
(via teleconference), testified in support of funding for
the Fairbanks Pipeline Training Center. He stated that the
center would provide training and enploynment opportunities
for Al askans.

6:12: 10 PM

M KE SEXTON, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, MECHANI CAL CONTRACTORS OF
FAI RBANKS, FAI RBANKS (via tel econference), spoke in support
of additional funding for the Fairbanks Pipeline Training
Center. He pointed out that the Mechanical Contractor of
Fai rbanks currently had nenbers working on pipeline jobs on
the North Slope. He concluded that the center would provide
training and enpl oynent opportunities throughout the state.

6:13: 06 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 12 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



MARI E SCHM DT, DI RECTOR, FAIRBANKS TENNIS ASSOCI ATI ON
FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), expressed support for
funding the association's request for new tennis courts.
She nentioned that the six outdoor courts that were
currently in Fairbanks were not adequate.

6:14: 42 PM

MARI ANN HOFFMAN, FAI RBANKS TENNI S ASSOCI ATI ON, FAI RBANKS
(via teleconference), testified in support of funding for
new tennis courts in Fairbanks and added that the
association's progranmng for youth tennis would be in
j eopardy without the construction of new courts.

6:15:21 PM

GLENN JUDAY, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via t el econference),
testified in support of funding the Boreal Al aska Learning,

Adapt at i on, and Production project. The project was
designed to help comrunities use forests to inprove the
quality of life. He stated that denmand for bionass energy

had exploded and that the project would establish
sust ai nabl e practices to neet the need.

6:17: 09 PM

Co- Chair Stedman handed the gavel over to Senator Thonsas.

6:17: 18 PM

TOM GRANT, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), spoke in
support for the Boreal Alaska Learning, Adaptation, and
Production project and stated that it would use existing
research and education projects to update the state's
understanding of biomass and how to inplenent it on a
| ar ger scal e.

6:17:59 PM

JAN DAWE, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), testified
in support of funding for the education and outreach
portion of the Boreal Alaska Learning, Adaptation, and
Production project. She spoke about the One Tree program
whi ch woul d provide the nodel for education and outreach in
the CAPSIS proposal. The project taught students about
sust ai nabl e forest managenment to bring econom c enpower nent
to rural communities.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 13 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



6:19:51 PM

SEAN LEE, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), testified
in support of the University of Alaska Undergraduate
Engi neeri ng Expansion Initiative to appropriate funding for
engineering facilities at UAF and the University of Al aska
Anchorage (UAA). He pointed out that engineering enroll nment
had increased over the past five years and observed that it
had beconme harder for Alaska to retain engineers; the
facilities would help Alaska produce and retain qualified
engi neers.

6:21: 14 PM

TRAVI S  ECKHOFF, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference),
testified in support of the University of Al aska
Under gr aduat e Engi neeri ng Expansi on Initiative to
appropriate funding for engineering facilities at UAF and
UAA.

6:22: 25 PM

DONALD PITTS, UNIVERSITY OF ALASKA ENG NEERI NG FACILITY,
FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), spoke in support of the
University of Alaska Undergraduate Engineering Expansion
Initiative to provide funding for engineering facilities at
UAF and UAA. He pointed out during his seven years as a
student at UAF, student enrollnent in the engineering
facility had nearly doubled; the facilities were no | onger
bi g enough to neet the needs of the university

6: 23: 33 PM

MARVI N HASSEBROCK, OLNES POND, FAI RBANKS (via
tel econference), testified in support of funding the O nes
Pond and Witefish canpgrounds and pointed out that 900
residents had signed a petition to keep the areas open. He
mentioned that budget cuts had been detrinmental to the
anount of users and the safety of those that visited the
t wo canpgrounds.

6:25:51 PM

DR ALEX HILLS, PROFESSOR OF ENG NEERI NG CARNEG E MELLON
UNI VERSI TY, PALMER (via teleconference), testified in
support of funding the University of Al aska Undergraduate

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 14 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



Engi neeri ng Expansion Initiative to appropriate funding for
engi neering facilities at UAF and UAA. He had observed that
the engineering teaching facilities at UAA were |ess than
adequat e.

6: 27: 38 PM

DI ANNE CHRI STI ANSEN, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, DANCE THEATRE
FAI RBANKS, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), testified in
support of the $500,000 funding request for Dance Theatre
Fai r banks and shared that the funds would be used to hire
contractors with equipnent and expertise for energy
efficiency construction. She concluded that a nore
efficient building would help the theatre achieve |ong-term
sustainability.

6: 30: 45 PM

DAVI D LEVY, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA MOBILITY CQALITION
(via teleconference), spoke in support of increasing the
governor's pr oposed mat chi ng f unds for public
transportation from $1 nmillion to $3 mllion. He stated
that the $1 mllion that was added |ast year had a huge
i npact on the state.

6:31:45 PM

MARK LUTTRELL, SELF, SEWARD (via teleconference), testified
in support of the Cooper Landing Wilkable Conmunities
Project and shared that the community of Cooper Landing had
initiated the program to address safety concerns. He
furthered that the anobunt of noney needed for the project
was small and would directly benefit the safety of the
comunity.

6: 34: 14 PM

ANN GHI CCUDUS, SELF, SEWARD (via teleconference), spoke in
support of the Cooper Landing Wal kabl e Communities Project
and related how heavily trafficked Cooper Landing was year
round; the project would enhance the enjoynent and safety
of the area.

6:35:14 PM

JUDY BRAKEL, SELF, GUSTAVUS (via teleconference), testified
in support of the $2.7 nmillion for oceanic acidification

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 15 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



research that was originally in the University of Al aska's
budget . She pointed out that the National Sci ence
Foundation had included only $21 mllion for all of the
U.S. and that Al aska would get a very small percentage. She
observed t hat determ ni ng t he effects of ocean
acidification on fisheries and other economc sectors
required an area by area assessnent and related that the
requested funding would be wused for ocean buoys and
chartering fishing vessels.

6: 38: 09 PM

SUE KENT, SELF, SCLDOTNA (via teleconference), testified in
support of the Alaska Peony Growers Association's Peony Cut
Fl ower | ndustry Devel oprment project.

6: 39: 08 PM

DANI EL O HARA, MAYOR, BRISTOL BAY BOROUGH, NAKNEK (via
tel econference), testified in support of the $10 mllion in
the governor's budget request for the second phase of the
Bri stol Bay Borough dock and stated that the borough had $6
mllion of the $16 mllion needed to conplete the phase. He
furthered that the engineering part of the project was
close to being conpleted. He observed that the harbor
serviced 30 communities during the salnmon runs and that the
dock was around 30 years-ol d.

6:40: 48 PM

VERNON BOYLES, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via tel econference), voiced
support of the $5 mllion CIP request for the Heavy Ol
Sol utions program and stated that new solutions technol ogy
would help transition heavy oil into the Trans-Al aska
Pi peline System (TAPS). The funding would be used for the
design and construction of a pilot plant that would be used
to nake heavy oil nore transportable in TAPS. He referenced

the need for nore oil in TAPS and related that there were
an estimated 33 billion barrels of heavy crude oil on the
North Sl ope. He concluded that new technology in heavy oi
woul d benefit the oil industry and Al askans.

6: 43: 05 PM

DAVI D KASSER, VISIT ANCHORAGE, ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), testified in support of the $1.5 nmillion

in funding for the Anchorage centennial celebration. He

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 16 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



nmentioned that the increnent included funding for the
Al aska Railroad Anphitheatre and a docunentary film He
noted that all Alaskans would benefit from the event and
concluded that the funding would enable Visit Alaska to
attract tourismand econonic opportunities to the state.

6:45: 08 PM

EUGENE PAUL, TRIBAL CH EF, HOLY CROSS TRI BAL COUNCI L, HCOLY
CROSS (via teleconference), testified in support of the
$300,000 in CIPs for the City of Holy Cross for its multi-
purpose building. He pointed out that the new building
woul d be used for social, wellness, and safety prograns;
the building would also serve as a comunity center and
woul d rai se noney on its own to pay for heating costs.

Co-Chair Stedman asked testifiers to identify thenselves
for the record and address the subject matter as succinctly
as possi bl e.

6:47:54 PM

JOY HUNTINGTON, TANANA CH EFS CONFERENCE, TANANA (via
tel econference), expressed support for the Tanana Chiefs
Conference regional comrunity projects and nentioned that
the conference had worked closely wth residents to
establish a priority list of projects. She stated that the
requested projects were critical for the health, energy,
and infrastructure of the area and that energy costs were a
particul ar concern for the 41 villages in the region.

6:49: 24 PM

CARL LARE, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, NATIVE WVILLAGE OF FORT
YUKOQON, FORT YUKON (via teleconference), testified in
support of funding for the nulti-purpose comunity buil ding
and an elder assisted-living facility in Fort Yukon. He
pointed out that the new nulti-purpose building would be
used by the tribe, the school district, and possibly the
vill age corporation.

6: 50: 58 PM

ELANA RATH, VOLUNTEER, ALASKA BRAIN | NJURY NETWORK
KETCHI KAN (via teleconference), expressed support of
increasing the governor's proposed matching funds for
public transportation from $1 nmllion to $3 nillion and

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 17 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



noted that the funding would help sustain transportation
operations throughout Al aska. She observed that the prior
year Ketchi kan had utilized about $86,000 of required match

for vehicles and thought that $3 mllion would go a long
way.
6:51: 58 PM

RON ELLI NGAORTH, PRESI DENT, ALASKA PEONY GROVERS
ASSCCI ATI ON, NORTH POLE (via teleconference), testified in
support of full funding for the Peony Cut Flower Industry
Devel opnent project. He shared that peony farming in the
state made economc sense because Alaska was the only
region in the wrld where peonies were comercially
harvested during July, August, and Septenber. He stated
that the peony industry in Alaska enployed dozens of
wor kers, had no conpetition, and had unlimted potenti al
He pointed out that the funding would be used for three
years of peony crop inprovenent research, an econom c study
for determining the best practices for a distribution
system and devel oping a national nmarketing strategy.

6:54:18 PM

SHERYL CHARLY, M NTO VI LLAGE COUNCI L, M NTO (via
t el econf erence), testified in support of the El der
| ndependent Living Housing project in Mnto and stated that
there was need for senior housing in Mnto and Fairbanks.
She expl ained that the $200,000 request would be used as a
match to secure federal funding.

6: 55: 24 PM

PATRI CI A PARTNOW ANTHROPOLOG ST AND EDUCATOR, ANCHORAGE
(via teleconference), urged for an increase in funding for
the SLAM building and related that the $20 nmillion that was
currently in the budget would not be enough to conplete the
$94.5 mllion project. She related that the state's
libraries, archives, and nuseuns contained irreplaceable
collections that were well used.

6: 56: 21 PM

BLYTHE MARSTON, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of the $1.5 million in funding for the
Anchorage centennial celebration. She pointed out that
al t hough the request cane late in the |egislative session

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 18 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



the process for vetting the project was thorough. She
stated that the funding would go towards | aunching the four
| egacy projects in tinme for the centennial and that failing
to fund the projects now would restrict opportunities to
i ncrease tourismand econom ¢ grow h.

6:57: 58 PM

MEGAN BUNCH, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via t el econference),
testified in support of the $5 million request for the
Heavy QG| Sol utions project and said that the funding would
be used for the construction of a pilot plant to utilize
heavy oil on the North Slope. She stated that heavy oil
woul d provide opportunities for enploynent and would all ow
her generation to reside, work, and raise famlies in
Al aska.

Co-Chair Stednman remnded the testifiers to introduce
thenmselves for the record and to be succinct in their
testinmony. He reiterated that testifiers need not explain
projects that had already been thoroughly addressed by
prior testifiers.

6: 59: 30 PM

CHRI STOPHER BUNCH, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference),
spoke in support of the $1.5 mllion in funding for the
Heavy O | Sol utions project.

6:59:47 PM

CCLI N UNDERWOOD, COVMUNI TY AND PROFESSI ONAL MEMBER, HEALTH
| NFORMATI ON SYSTEMS SOCI ETY (via teleconference), voiced
support of $3.8 mllion in funding for the Health
| nformati on Exchange (HIE) in Alaska. He stated that it was
a good information exchange and furthered that it would
all ow access to nedical information while traveling outside
Al aska; he explained that this function would help insure
that a potentially fatal treatnment was not admnistered in
the event of a nedical energency. He concluded that an H E
was good for overall public health and woul d hopefully | ead
to | ower health care costs.

7:01: 07 PM

Co- Chair Stedman handed the gavel over to Senator Ellis.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 19 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



7:01:22 PM

DOUG  JOHNSON, DI RECTOR, BUSI NESS  DEVELOPMENT, OCEAN
RENEWABLE POWER COWMPANY, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of the University of Al aska
Under gr aduat e Engi neeri ng Expansi on Initiative to
appropriate funding for engineering facilities at UAF and
UAA, the UAF CIP request, and the East Foreland Tidal
Energy project. He shared that good engineering facilities
were needed to graduate quality engineers and related that
the UAF CIP request would address river debris mtigation

He stated that river debris mtigation was vital to the
devel opnment of the hydro-kinetic industry in Alaska and
could be applied to other river systens worldw de. He
pointed out that the East Foreland Tidal Energy project
woul d provide jobs for graduating engineers and increase
the wuniversity's applied research capacity. He observed
that Cook Inlet tidal energy would be available |long after
the oil and gas were depl et ed.

7:03:26 PM

RI CHARD DOMAI NG SENI OR VI CE- PRESI DENT, GCI ALASKA (via
tel econference), testified in support of the University of
Al aska Undergraduate Engineering Expansion Initiative to
appropriate funding for engineering facilities at UAF and
UAA. He related that GCI had hired many University of
Al aska engineering graduates and that they had been anong
CCl's best engineers. He further explained that Al askan
engi neering graduates possessed the skills necessary for
the growth and success of Al aska- based technol ogy
conpanies. He noted that the wuniversity had doubled its
enr ol | ment over the [ ast 10 years, but had not
significantly increased its engineering facilities.

7: 04: 46 PM

AVES  THOWPSON, EXECUTI VE DI RECTCR, ALASKA  TRUCKI NG
ASSCCI ATI ON, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified in
support of the $350,000 mllion request for the Port of
Anchorage Expansion project and funding for the Al aska
Moose Federation projects. He stated that trucks nade an
estimated 240,000 trips through the Port of Anchorage each
year. He related that it was inportant for port facilities
to be equipped to handle traffic efficiently and be
prepared for the next generation of |arger ships. He said
that noose collisions wth trucks were wasteful and

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 20 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



expensive and that he supported the Alaska Mose
Federation's efforts for highway deterrence and sal vage.

7:05:45 PM

BRUCE PARHAM BOARD OF DI RECTORS, COOK | NLET HI STORI CAL
SOCI ETY, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), urged support of
funding the SLAM building project. He requested an
additional $74.5 mllion on top of the governor's proposed
$20 mllion in order to fully fund the building
construction and related concerns that building costs were
going up. He furthered that acting now could save mllions
of dollars in building costs and operations budgets. He
shared that SLAM would protect Alaska' s irreplaceable
records, historical heritage, and artifacts and that the
request was supported by the Al aska Historical Society, the
Al aska Library Association, and Miuseuns Al aska.

7:07: 08 PM

ORSON  SM TH, ENG NEER, SEWARD (via teleconference),
expressed support of the University of Al aska Undergraduate
Engi neeri ng Expansion Initiative to appropriate funding for
engineering facilities at UAF and UAA He shared that
Al aska needed engineers and that funding the construction
of new engineering education facilities would help
acconplish that.

7:08: 01 PM

DAVI D PATTERSQN, STATE-AFFI LI ATE PARTNER, FIRST ROBOTICS
PROGRAMS, ANCHCORAGE (via teleconference), testified in
support for the First Robotics statewi de capital budget
request and shared that the request would support the
state's infrastructure for all four First Robotics prograns
for students in K-12 education. He pointed out that Al aska
led the nation in per capita participation for FIRST Lego
League and First Tech Challenge and shared that the
prograns notivated students to inprove their skills in
sci ence, engineering, math, communication, team work, and
probl em solving. He noted that six teanms would represent
Al aska at the World Chanpionships in St. Louis.

7:09: 41 PM

TERRI DRAEGER, STUDENT, UN VERSITY OF ALASKA ANCHORAGE
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), expressed support for the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 21 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



University of Alaska Undergraduate Engineering Expansion
Initiative to appropriate fundi ng for engi neering
facilities at UAF and UAA and the University of Alaska as a
whol e. She stated that the engineering departnment needed
updated facilities to maintain high standards.

7:10: 03 PM

CATHERI NE CALL, MEMBER, ADVI SORY BQOARD, UAA SCHOOL OF
ENG NEERI NG  ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), voiced her
support for the University of Al aska Under graduate
Engi neeri ng Expansion Initiative to appropriate funding for
engineering facilities at UAF and UAA. She shared that
graduates of the university's engineering prograns would
contribute to the growh and devel opnment of the econony,
had a will to stay in the state, and had an understandi ng
of local <climte issues that inpacted developnent in
Al aska.

7:10: 59 PM

JOHN CREWS, CHAI RMAN, ALASKA VOCATI ONAL AND TECHNI CAL
CENTER STATEW DE | NDUSTRI AL ADVI SORY BOARD (via
tel econference), expressed his support of funding for the
Al aska Institute of Technol ogy's (AVTEC) canpus. He rel ated
that a new applied technology shop and student dormtory
were included in the request and that AVTEC s current
dormtory was noisy, <cold, and had high heating and
mai nt enance costs. He nentioned that the current applied
technol ogy shop was a tenporary structure that had been
erected 40 years prior and that AVTEC needed a newer, nore
nodern shop. He concluded that AVIEC graduated skilled
techni ci ans who were buil ding Al aska's future.

7:12:43 PM

ARVI ND  PHUKAN, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support for University of Al aska Undergraduate
Engi neeri ng Expansion Initiative to appropriate funding for
engineering facilities at UAA He shared that he had 14
years of experience teaching engineering at UAA and six 6
years at UAF. He supporting the initiative for the three
followng reasons: congestion and |ack of space per
student, inadequate teaching facilities, and the University
of Al aska needed nore nodern, state of the art prograns and
facilities.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 22 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



7:14:40 PM

RYAN BUCHHCLDT, PRESIDENT, STUDENT BODY, UN VERSITY OF
ALASKA, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), expressed support
for Uni versity of Al aska  Under graduat e Engi neeri ng
Expansion Initiative to appropriate funding for engineering
facilities at UAA and UAF. He nentioned that the space was
especially limted for UAA engineering students and that
better facilities were needed.

7:15:12 PM

LOS EPSTEIN, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in opposition of funding the road to Um at. She
shared that Al aska spent mllions of dollars on roads and
bridges without plans to conplete the projects and that the
state had spent $133 mllion of nostly federal dollars on
five projects, one of which was the Um at road. She stated
that the KABATA and Gravina bridges' planning efforts were
funded around 90 percent by the federal governnent; 1In
contrast, $35 nillion in state dollars would have been
spent on the Umat road, should the $10 million for the
road remain in the governor's budget. She concluded that
the funding could be used for increasing road safety,
education, and nunicipal revenue sharing and that private
i ndustry had not contributed anything to project.

7:17:17 PM

HEATHER ARNETT, STATEW DE ADM NI STRATOR, ASSCOCI ATION OF
ALASKA HOUSI NG AUTHORI TI ES, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
expressed support of fully funding the $100 nmillion for the
Weat herization and Energy Rebate Progranms and urged to
fully fund the $13.064 mllion for the Al aska Housing
Finance Corporation's Suppl enental Housi ng Devel opnent
Grant Program She pointed out that regional housing
authorities had weatherized 872 homes throughout Al aska in
2010 and that the weatherized honmes were seeing cost
savings of 30 to 40 percent. She cited that the Al eutian
Housi ng Authority had reported an average yearly savings of
$3, 000 per household. She nentioned that the governor had
requested $7 mllion for the Housing Developnent G ant
Program and stated that full funding would result in the
construction of 222 new honmes and 223 rehabilitated hones
in communities throughout Al aska.

7:20: 03 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 23 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



ARLI SS STURGELEWSKI, SHELDON JACKSON BOARD, ANCHORAGE (via
t el econf erence), expressed her  support for continued
funding to the SLAM project. She referenced the closing of
Shel don Jackson College and shared that the state
libraries, archives, and nmuseuns were working very closely
with the Sheldon Jackson Board to provide a safe place to
store 130 years of records for the Shel don Jackson Coll ege.
She stated that Alaska's libraries, archives, and nuseuns
were in disrepair and strongly urged for continued funding
to that area.

7:21:50 PM

LI NDSEY VHI TT, DI RECTOR, PUBLI C  RELATI ONS, PORT OF
ANCHORAGE, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified in
support of funding for the Port of Anchorage Dock Expansion
project and the Anchorage centennial celebration. She
remarked that in the interest of tine, additional letters
of support for the Port of Anchorage would be submtted.

7:22: 29 PM

VES VANDERMARTI N, VI CE-PRESIDENT AND GCENERAL MNMANAGER,
ALASKA BASI C | NDUSTRIES, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
expressed support of funding for the Port of Anchorage Dock
Expansi on  project. He explained that Al aska Basic
I ndustries was a nmjor supplier of cenent throughout the
state and that the conpany's cenment was transported through
the Port of Anchorage. He stated that Alaska Basic
| ndustries had been in collaboration with the Port of
Anchorage regarding construction of new storage facilities
for cenent. The storage facilities would allow for the
entry of larger ships that required a deeper draft; the new
dock woul d be deep enough to accommobdate the | arger ships.

7:24:33 PM

M LLIE  JOHNSQN, CHAI RVAN, VOYAGE TO EXCELLENCE (via
tel econference), testified in support of full funding for
the Voyage to Excellence program She pointed out that
Voyage to Excellence had received 597 letters of support
statewide. She shared that the program was a statew de
junior and high school program that served 250 students
annual ly. She concluded that the funding would be used to
expand facilities.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 24 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



7:25:09 PM

PETE STOKES, CONSULTI NG PETROLEUM ENGQ NEER, ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), expressed support for the University of
Al aska Undergraduate Engineering Expansion Initiative to
appropriate funding for engineering facilities at UAA and
UAF and related that the university's enroll nent had grown
by 50 percent in the last 4 years. He pointed out that
while enroll nent had i ncreased, there had been no
meani ngf ul expansion of facilities.

7:26:37 PM

LI NDSAY HAJ DUK, S| ERRA CLUB, ANCHORAGE (via
tel econference), testified against the Port MKenzie Rail
extension and the Roads to Resources program She stated
that rail extension represented $110 million in the budget

and Roads to Resources reflected $28.5 mllion. She pointed
out that the prograns did not have solid business plans,
put | ocal communities at risk, and should not be

prioritized in the budget. She concluded that the Sierra
Club supported maintaining the infrastructure the state
currently had.

7:29: 33 PM

SEAN  RUDDY, PRESI DENT, KACHEMAK  SHELLFI SH MARI CULTURE
ASSCCI ATION (via tel econference), expressed strong support
of funding for ocean acidification research at UAF and the
Seed Security Initiative requested by the Al aska Shellfish
G owers Associ ation. He remarked that the Kachemak
Shel I fish Mariculture Association had expected a "seed" of
3 mllion oysters last year, but that they only produced a
seed of 1 mllion. He stated the low seed nunber was a
direct result of ocean acidification's inpact during the
| arval state of the oysters.

7:30: 50 PM

JACK  COLONELL, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
testified in support of the University of Al aska
Under gr aduat e Engi neeri ng Expansi on Initiative to

appropriate funding for engineering facilities at UAA and
UAF. He stated that the engineering facilities at UAA and
UAF were in serious need of upgrades to neet the increasing
demand for Al askan engineers. He <concluded that young
engi neers were an essential conmponent of the state's future

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 25 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



and that new facilities were needed to produce quality
gr aduat es.

7:31:55 PM

SANDRA MORRI S, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference),
expressed support of the University of Al aska Undergraduate
Engi neeri ng Expansion Initiative to appropriate funding for
engi neering facilities at UAA and UAF.

7:32:18 PM

Senator Ellis handed the gavel over to Senator Thonmas.

7:32: 32 PM

DEE LONGENBOUGH, SELF, JUNEAU, expressed strong support for
t he SLAM proj ect.

7:33: 31 PM

BECKY HASSENBROEK, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference),
expressed her support for funding the Lower Chatanika State
Recreation Area and shared that the state parks departnent
issued a directive to renpbve the existing inprovenents in
the dnes Pond and Witefish canpgrounds. She also
nmentioned that vehicular access would be restricted and
poi nted out that the public was not properly nade aware of
the directive. In addition to 900 petitioners, resolutions
of support for the two canpgrounds were issued from the
Fai r banks Convention and Visitors Bureau, the Northern Area
Al aska State Parks Citizens Advisory Board, the North Star
Borough mayor, the Haystack Comrunity, the Farthest North
Grl Scout Council, Alaska state garden clubs, and many
ot her organizations. She concluded that the canpgrounds
provided a positive outdoor experience and that shaneful
neglect had led to disrepair to the inprovenents in the
canpgr ounds.

7:35:14 PM

GRACE AMUNDSEN, STUDENT, UNI VERSITY OF ALASKA, ANCHORAGE
(via tel econference), spoke in support of the University of
Al aska Undergraduate Engineering Expansion Initiative to
appropriate funding for engineering facilities at UAA and
UAF. She stated that UAA was growi ng quickly and needed
sone i nvestnent.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 26 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



7:35:36 PM

ROALAND POWNERS, STUDENT, UNI VERSITY OF ALASKA FAI RBANKS,
FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), testified in support of the
University of Alaska Undergraduate Engineering Expansion
Initiative to appropriate fundi ng for engi neering
facilities at UAA and UAF and pointed out that an upgrade
woul d be well wutilized.

7:36: 01 PM

JOSEPH STRI BRNY, STUDENT, UNI VERSITY OF ALASKA FAI RBANKS,
FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), expressed support of the
University of Alaska Undergraduate Engineering Expansion
Initiative to appropriate f undi ng for engi neeri ng
facilities at UAA and UAF and shared that the program would
help maintain the high standards that engineering students
at the university strived for

7:36:28 PM

TY WARDDELL, STUDENT, UNIVERSITY OF ALASKA FAI RBANKS
FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), spoke in support of the
University of Alaska Undergraduate Engineering Expansion
Initiative to appropriate f undi ng for engi neering
facilities at UAA and UAF. He shared that the program woul d
provide nore room for storage and would greatly increase
accessibility to equipnent.

7:37: 08 PM

GLENN VI LLENEUVE, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference),
expressed his opposition to building new roads in northern
Al aska. He shared a personal story about subsistence life
in the Brooks Range and related that the bal ance between
humans and other |ife forns had been lost. He noted that
cul tures based on subsistence hunting were devastated when
new roads were built through the area and urged that the
state needed to live with nore respect for nature.

7: 38: 50 PM

RON |IWOUYE, FRIENDS OF THE UN VERSITY OF ALASKA MJSEUM
FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), expressed his support for
full funding for the SLAM project. He rem nded those
listening that the state archives had fl ooded on August 17,

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 27 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



2009 and shared concern that the state's heritage was being
negl ected. He stated that the Friends of the University of
Al aska Museum had passed a resolution supporting SLAM He
nmentioned that representatives of the Al aska Historical
Society and the Tanana Yukon Historical Society were also
in full support of SLAM but had left before they were able
to testify.

7:39: 52 PM

JENNI FER JOLI'S, PRESI DENT, BREADLINE |INC., FAIRBANKS (via
tel econference), expressed her support of $150,000 in
funding for a building project for Breadline Inc. She
related that Breadline Inc. had been serving hot neals for
27 years and stated that the funding would be used to
renovate a building to serve as a headquarters. She
concluded that the project was expected to cost around
$400, 000, but the request was for $150,000 as al nost
$100,000 of the total had already been pledged as
donati ons.

7:41: 22 PM

M TCHELL HAL VERSON, STUDENT, UNI VERSI TY  OF ALASKA
FAI RBANKS, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), expressed his
support of the University  of Al aska Undergraduate
Engi neeri ng Expansion Initiative to appropriate funding for
engineering facilities at UAA and UAF and shared that the
space provided at university facilities was inadequate.

7:41: 47 PM

SAMUEL DYE, STUDENT, UNI VERSI TY OF ALASKA FAI RBANKS,
FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), voiced his support of the
University of Alaska Undergraduate Engineering Expansion
Initiative to appropriate f undi ng for engi neeri ng
facilities at UAA and UAF and stated that there was not
enough space in the nmachine shop. He felt a new engi neering
building would increase space and safety in the machine
shop.

7:42: 36 PM

PATRI Cl A JI NX VH TAKER, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via
tel econference), testified in support of the $2.54 nmillion
for the Raven Landing Community Center and stated that the

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 28 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



construction of the center would be an econom c boost to
Fai r banks.

7:43:58 PM

JOHN LYSEN, CHAIRVAN, ALASKA STATE PARK NORTHERN REGQ ON
CI TIZEN ADVI SORY BOARD (via teleconference), expressed
support of funding for dnes Pond and Al aska state parks
CIlPs in general. He said that Odnes Pond was a great
canpground that had fallen into disrepair and that funding
was needed to nmake the park safe for all user groups again.
He concluded that there was a public health and safety
concern at A nes Pond that needed to be addressed.

7:44:53 PM

M CHAEL GOLUB, STUDENT, UNI VERSITY OF ALASKA, FAI RBANKS
(via teleconference), expressed his support for the
University of Alaska Undergraduate Engineering Expansion
Initiative to appropriate f undi ng for engi neering
facilities at UAA and UAF. He related that there was very
little |ab space available at UAF and that the funding was
needed this year.

7:45:49 PM

LI SSA  HUGHES, NORTHERN  ALASKA  ENVI RONMENTAL  CENTER
FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), testified in opposition to
the $28.5 mllion in funding for the Roads to Resources
program and pointed out that none of roads had been
justified based on economc returns. She felt that the
state should not ganble with its general funds and that
Roads to Resources took focus and capital away from other
statewi de priorities.

7:46: 53 PM

MARY  NORDALE, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference),
expressed support of the retirement community facility in
Raven Landing and pointed out that it would be available to
residents of Fairbanks as well. She stated that the
facility would provide food services, neeting places, and
would fit a "niche" in the comunity that would serve a
mul ti - purpose function.

7:48: 49 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 29 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



KAREN LANE, GENERAL MANAGER, 2014 ARCTIC W NTER GAMES HOST
SOCI ETY (via teleconference), testified in support of an
amendnent that increased the governor's appropriation for
the Arctic Wnter Games from $500,000 to $1 mllion. She
stated that the arctic winter ganes provided |ife changing
experiences for youth living in in Northern Al aska through
conpetition and cultural exchange. She pointed out that the
ganes would have an estimated $13 million in economc
i npact and woul d be vol unteer driven event.

7:49:37 PM

SUSAN KESSLER, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA CENTER FOR
CHI LDREN AND ADULTS, FAI RBANKS (ACCA) (via teleconference),
expressed support of the ACCA Facility Expansion and
Upgrade project. He shared that the ACCA provided
disability services in Fairbanks, the North Slope, Delta
Junction, and Copper R ver regions of the state. She noted
that the funding would enable the ACCA to continue
providing services outside of the Fairbanks region. She
stated that ACCA was a local facility provider and partner
for statew de organizations that needed to expand outreach
into nore renote areas of the state and that it was | ooking
at expanding facilities to provide support to parent
or gani zati ons.

7:51:21 PM

JOMO  STEWART, PROQIECT MANACER, FAI RBANKS ECONOM C
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (via teleconference), spoke in
support of a $32.9 mllion request to continue work on the
devel opnment of gas distribution infrastructure for the
Fai rbanks North Star Borough (FNSB) and stated that the
request was supported by the three FNSB nayors, the |oca
chanmber of commerce board, and the borough assenbly.

7:52: 01 PM

M KE SHUTETZ, FACILITIES PRQIECT MANAGER, UN VERSITY OF
ALASKA FAI RBANKS, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), testified
in support of full funding for the University of Al aska
Under gr aduat e Engi neeri ng Expansi on Initiative to
appropriate funding for engineering facilities at UAA and
UAF and rel ated that the new buil di ngs were needed.

7:52:57 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 30 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



GARY LAURSEN, DIRECTOR, HONORS PROGRAM UNIVERSITY OF
ALASKA FAI RBANKS, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference), testified
in support of the Alaska Performance Scholarship and the
Honors Program He stated that the University of Al aska had
sent 361 letters of support for the Honors Program and
urged the continued funding of the program

7:54:01 PM

M KE POWNERS, CHI EF EXECUTI VE OFFI CER, FAI RBANKS MEMORI AL
HOSPI TAL AND DENALI CENTER (via teleconference), testified

in support of the $2.54 mllion in funding for the Raven
Landing project. He stated that the facility would mnim ze
state Medicare dollars and would lead to healthier |ives

anong the senior community.

7:55: 02 PM

JOHN  RI NGSTAD, SELF, FAI RBANKS (via teleconference),
testified in support of the $2.53 mllion in funding for
the Raven Landing project. He shared that the project had
t he support of |ocal governnents and that $500,000 in | ocal
contributions had been raised so far.

7:55:49 PM

STEVE M TCHELL, VICE PRESI DENT, FAI RBANKS DRAMA ASSCCI ATI ON
AND CHI LDREN S THEATRE (via teleconference), testified in
support of the $25,000 funding request for a heating system
upgrade to the Fairbanks Drama Association. He related that
the association had worked to refurbish a converted
war ehouse into the R verfront Theatre and that it was
fundraising at all tines.

7:56:54 PM

PEGGY FURGESON, FAI RBANKS DRAMA ASSOCI ATION AND CHI LDREN S
THEATRE (via teleconference), expressed support of the
$25,000 funding request for a heating system upgrade for
t he Fai rbanks Drama Associ ation. She stated the association
was able to heat the theatre house, stage, and | obby, but
were unable to adequately heat the scene building area and
adm nistrative offices. She nentioned that there were 500
vol unteers who worked at the Riverfront Theatre annually.

7:58: 03 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 31 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



JEFF JACOBSON, CHI EF OF STAFF, FAI RBANKS NORTH STAR BOROUGH
(via teleconference), spoke in support of increasing the
governor's appropriation from $500,000 to $1 nmillion for
the Arctic Wnter Ganes Host Society. He also requested $2
mllion for the Voluntary Wodstove Change-out Program in
order to neet federal mandates. He voiced support of
$750,000 for Pi oneer Park deferred rmaintenance. He
supported funding for the Fairbanks road service areas and
spoke in support of funding the Carlson Center cold storage
facility. He requested $1.6 nmillion for Birch Hill

i nprovenents and supported the Noel Wen Regional State
Library major rmaintenance projects. He asked for an
additional $3.6 million to match the $3 mllion in loca

funds that was being used to address major nmintenance and
energy inprovenents. He asked for the funding of two
artificial turfs to extend the playing seasons for interior
Al aska.

8:00: 27 PM

JACK W LLARD, FIRE CH EF, CHENA GOLDSTREAM FI RE AND RESCUE
(via teleconference), testified in support of the $100, 000
in funding for the mai ntenance project and renodel of Chena
Goldstream s station 4. He related that the facility was
used by many different local interests and also served as
an energency conmand post and briefing area in the event of
a natural disaster. He nentioned that the funding would be
used for a roof replacenent and neeting ADA accessibility
standards. She pointed out that volunteers to the project
had put in over $10,000 in volunteer |abor, but that
contractor work was needed.

8:02:18 PM

KENT KARNS, NORTH SKI CLUB OF FAIRBANKS, FAIRBANKS (via
tel econference), testified in support of funding the Birch
H 1l Cross Country Ski Center inprovenents and stated that
the inprovenents were a great way to keep people involved
in outdoor activities. He pointed out that the funding
would go towards a nmintenance facility, new technol ogy,
and par ki ng upgrades.

8:03: 05 PM

EMLY ANNS, FAIRBANKS RESOQURCES AGENCY, FAIRBANKS (via
tel econference), testified in support of the Fairbanks
Resource Agency's two funding requests to assist in

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 32 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



developing and maintaining affordable and accessible
housing for individuals with disabilities. She stated that
t he Fairbanks Resources Agency currently had 72 units and
woul d begin construction of another 8 unit housing conplex;
$200, 000 had been requested for the conpletion of the
project. The second request for $47,934 would be used for
wi ndow replacenents and adding heat recovery ventilation
units to the existing assisted living hones. She observed
that the assisted living facility was unable to build up
adequate reserves for deferred nmintenance because the rent
was so affordable.

8:05:57 PM

GREGORY  NEWVBY, DI RECTOR, ARCTIC REG ON SUPERCOVPUTI NG
CENTER, UNIVERSITY OF ALASKA FAIRBANKS, FAIRBANKS (via
tel econference), testified in support of H gh Performance
Computing for Alaskan Research that was in the University
of Al aska's budget. He related the expanding roles that the
Arctic Region Superconputing Center (ARSC) and other
university partners were engaged in. He stated that ARSC
woul d be providing data and forecasting capabilities to
school s, businesses, decision makers, and the general
public. He discussed a central website where the outputs of
uni versity research, observations, and forecasts would be
avai l able. He stated that the funding request was for nore
than conmputing and would be used to broaden the utility of
Al aska's intellectual outputs.

8:06: 57 PM

GERALD MEYERS, SELF, FAIRBANKS (via teleconference), spoke
on behalf of funding for the Heavy G| Solutions request
and stated the need to put new oil into TAPS. He pointed
out that North Dakota was an exanple of what new technol ogy
could do for a state and concl uded that heavy oil solutions
new t echnol ogy could be a "gane changer"” for Al aska.

8:07:46 PM

STEWART FERGUSON, CHI EF | NFORVATI ON OFFI CER, ALASKA NATI VE
TRI BAL HEALTH CONSORTI UM FAI RBANKS (via teleconference)

expressed his support for funding the $3.8 mllion request
to conplete the statewide Health Information Exchange
(HIE). He nentioned that there were many stand-al one health
records in the state and observed that the Al aska Native
Medi cal Center had recently invested over $20 nillion to

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 33 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



establish an electronic health exchange. He pointed out
that the H E was the only viable option to connect the
mul ti tude of databases and to |leverage them to their full
potential. He stated that the Alaska Native Tribal Health
Consortium would be unable to neet their commtnents to
quality healthcare wthout the addition of an HE and
concluded that it would solve the problem of inaccurate or
i nconpl ete nedical records.

8:09: 50 PM

JIM BARNETT, PRESIDENT, COOK |INLET H STORICAL SOCIETY,
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified on behalf of the
$1.5 mnmllion in funding for the Anchorage centenni al
cel ebration and supported full funding of the SLAM project.
He stated that the Cook Inlet Hi storical Society was one of
the largest and oldest historical organizations in the
state and that during the past six nonths it had hel ped
plan the Anchorage centennial. He stated that the $1.5
mllion in funding would be matched "many tinmes over" by
federal and private funds. He concluded that the effort
woul d be a three-year event that all Al askan's could take
great pride in.

8:11: 04 PM

JIM BOLTZ, COLLEGE OF ENG NEERING AND M NES ADVI SORY AND
DEVELOPMENT  COUNCI L, UNI VERSITY OF ALASKA OF ALASKA
FAI RBANKS, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), expressed
support of the University of Al aska  Undergraduate
Engi neeri ng Expansion Initiative to appropriate funding for
engineering facilities at UAA and UAF.

8:11: 30 PM

BOB HENRY, CHAI RVAN, ALASKA  MOOSE FEDERATION (via
tel econference), expressed his support of funding for the
Al aska Mbose Federati on.

8:11:49 PM

GLORIA CHYTHLOOK, SELF, GRDWOOD (via teleconference),
testified in support of funding for the Grdwood Health
Clinic and related that it was the only provider of nedical
care and urgent care services in the Turnagain Arm area.
She stated that an investnent by the state would provide
for long-term financial sustainability and that the funds

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 34 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



woul d be used to qgual i fy for enhanced Medi cai d
rei nbursenent, federal funding, and obtaining a conmunity
health clinic designation. She pointed out that the area
had been certified by the federal governnent as a "health
shortage service area" and stated that the request was
about basic nedical care for the 2,500 residents in the
ar ea.

8:13: 50 PM

SUE LINFORD, CHAIR, COW SSION FOR THE PORT OF ANCHORAGE
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), expressed her support for
$350 nmillion in funding for the Port of Anchorage's
expansi on. She referenced an Alaska Wrld Affairs Council
report that concluded that the focus of Al aska should be on
ports and education. She shared the need to keep the
Anchor age Port usabl e and vi brant.

8:15:34 PM

GARY OLSON, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified
in support of continued funding for the Al aska Mose
Federation and stated that record snow falls in the Mt-Su
had resulted in over 450 noose collisions this winter. He
poi nted out that the sal vage program had harvested 24 npose
in its first week of operation and that 17 nopose had been
sal vaged in one day on February 2.

8:16: 23 PM

KI MBERLY WOCODY, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ANGELUS MEMORI AL PARK
CEMETERY, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), urged for
continued funding of the $500,000 request for the Angelus
Menorial Park Cenetery. She pointed out that the generous
funding would enable the nenorial park to sustain a non-
profit status and serve the conmunity.

8:17:45 PM

MARCH RUNNER, GALENA BIOVWASS COW TTEE, GALENA (via
tel econference), testified in support of Galena s Bionass
Heating project and stated that Galena had |ost 60 percent
of its wutility revenue when the air force had left the
area. She pointed out that Bio fuel was the nost efficient
way to elimnate Galena's heating fuel issue and related
that the commttee had been working with Al aska Energy
Aut hority. She observed that the conmmttee was dedicated to

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 35 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



a responsi ble and renewabl e use of the forest and that the
project consisted of three portions. Equipnment had been
purchased to begin processing wood. She concluded that the
project would result in lower wutilities, increased |jobs,
and woul d make the community nore sustai nabl e.

8:20:17 PM

ROBERT BALDW N, ALASKA SCI ENCE AND TECHNOLOGY OF ANCHORACGE
ANCHORAGE (via teleconference), testified in support of
full funding for the University of Alaska Undergraduate
Engi neeri ng Expansion Initiative to appropriate funding for
engineering facilities at UAA and UAF and urged support for
the Cooper Landing Wl kable Community project. He stated
that there was a strong public safety justification for the
Wal kabl e Community project.

8:21:18 PM

CONNIE SN PE, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, CENTER FOR COVMUNITY,
SITKA (via tel econference), expressed support of increasing
t he governor's budget request of $1 million in state match
for public transportation to $3 mllion. She stated that
federal operating grants required 43 percent nmatch for
every dollar and that state match was needed. She shared
that public transit in Sitka had experience a 25 percent
i ncrease in use over the | ast year.

8:22:36 PM

DREW MORRI S, SELF, ANCHORAGE (via t el econference),
testified in support of full funding for the University of
Al aska Undergraduate Engineering Expansion Initiative to
appropriate funding for engineering facilities at UAA and
UAF and related how the engineering departnment at UAA had
added civil and nechani cal engineering to course offerings.
He shared that there was need for new engineering
facilities and that |ocal engineers were inportant for
Al aska.

8:23:47 PM

LEXI FISH, SELF, SITKA (via teleconference), expressed her
support for full funding to the University of Alaska's
original request for $2.7 mllion for ocean acidification
research and nonitoring. She stated that the future of
fishing economes would rely on sound scientific research

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 36 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



and that cuts to research of ocean acidification were
i rresponsi bl e.

8:25:11 PM

LOUANNE STONE, SELF, ANAKTUVUK PASS (via teleconference),
testified against the $10 million in funding for the road
to Unat and stated that the residents of the Anaktuvuk
Pass region would be directly affected by the road. She
stated that the road was being built on assunptions.

8:26: 04 PM

ESTHER HUGDO, SELF, ANAKTUVUK PASS (via teleconference),
urged against the $10 mllion in funding for the road to
Unat and stated that that it wuld alter the fall
mgration routes of the caribou in the area. She spoke
about the inportance of protecting subsistence lifestyles
and expressed concern that native peoples were not
consul ted when projects |ike these were pl anned.

LEE KARASI EW CZ, SELF, ANAKTUVUK PASS (via tel econference),
strongly opposed the $10 mllion in funding for the road to
Um at .

CHELSEA MORRY, SELF, ANAKTUVUK PASS (via teleconference),
expressed opposition to the $10 mllion in funding for the
road to Umat and stated concerns that the road would
i npact caribou mgration. She also voiced concerns about
the change that road would bring to the way of Ilife,
culture, and heritage of the village of Anaktuvuk Pass. He
observed that the funding could be used for other areas in
t he state.

AUDREY SHELDON, SELF, ANAKTUVUK PASS (via teleconference),
urged her opposition to the $10 million in funding for the
road to Umiat and shared concerns that the road would
negatively inpact caribou mgration.

JAMES NAGEAK, SELF, ANAKTUVUK PASS (via teleconference),
testified in support for new adm nistrative buildings at

Anat oovi k Pass and funding for Ilisagvik College. He also
urged for financial assistance to rural villages. He
observed that Ilisagvik College was the state's only triba

college and related the high costs of fuel, transportation,
and general costs of living in rural Al askan vill ages.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 37 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



DR. LI SA  KORONKI EW EZ, SELF, ANAKTUVUK  PASS (via
tel econference), wurged opposition to the $10 mllion in
funding for the road to Um at.

DEVLI N MEKI ANA, SELF, ANAKTUWUK PASS (via tel econference),
expressed opposition to the $10 mllion in funding for the
road to Umat. He explained that the road would negatively
i npact caribou mgrations and the way of life at Anaktuvuk
Pass.

JALEN SHELDON, SELF, ANAKTUVUK PASS (via teleconference),
testified in opposition to the $10 mllion in funding for
the road to Umat and related that he did not want to see a
lifestyle change in the area.

FREI DA RULLI ND, SELF, ANAKTUWUK PASS (via teleconference),
expressed opposition to the $10 mllion in funding for the
road to Umiat and pointed out concern that the road would
negati vely inpact caribou mgration.

JUST JENSEN, SELF, ANAKTUVUK PASS (via teleconference),
testified in opposition to the $10 mllion in funding for
the road to Um at.

COLBY ROOTI, SELF, ANAKTUVUK PASS (via teleconference),
expressed opposition to the $10 mllion in funding for the
road to Um at

JOSI E MEKI ANA, SELF, ANAKTUVUK PASS (via tel econference),
testified in opposition to the $10 mllion in funding for
the road to Um at.

DR. TOM N CEWONDER, Self, ANCHORAGE (via teleconference)
expressed his support for funding the statewde Health
| nformati on Exchange and stated that it was "inpossible" to
see patients safely without the right information.

8:48:40 PM

JANETTE CADI EUX, WALKABLE COVWMUNITY PRQIECT COW TTEE
COOPER LANDI NG (via teleconference), testified in support
of the $600,000 for the Raven Landing Wl kable Conmunity
Project. She stated that the section of road was very
congested and that the project would benefit the entire
ar ea.

8:50: 25 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 38 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



LI NDA  BEHNKEN, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, ALASKA  LONGLI NE
FI SHERVAN S ASSOCI ATION (via teleconference), expressed
support of full funding for ocean acidification research at
UAF and stated that there were local vessels in Sitka that
were eager to engage as platforns of opportunity for
coll ecting data. She concluded that the research would help
ensure the future productivity of Alaska's fisheries.

8:50: 15 PM

DORENE DEATON, SELF, BEAVER (via teleconference), spoke in
support of the Tanana Chiefs Conference Region's ClPs and
shared that the projects included energy efficiency
i nprovenents, building new clinics, or assisting elders in
returning to their home communities.

8:51: 05 PM

BEN MCLUCKIE, SELF, HOONAH (via teleconference), testified
in support of funding for the First Robotics CIPs and the
Juneau Econom c¢ Devel opnment Council. He related that the
FI RST program gave science and engineering as nmuch prestige
as sports. He shared that that the program had no regard
for gender, ethnicity, or socio-economcs, and that the
nunber of students in the programwas grow ng fast.

8:52:49 PM

ANGEL BOND, COOPER LANDI NG CHAMBER OF COWWERCE, COOPER
LANDI NG (via teleconference), testified in support of the
Cooper Landing Wal kable Community project and stated that
it would give visitors and the commnity safe, year-round
trails. She related that there were approximtely 10,000
people a day that trafficked through Cooper Landing and
that the resulting conditions were unsafe.

8:53:41 PM

RHONDA HUBBARD, SELF, SEWARD (via teleconference), spoke
against the $5 mllion in funding for the Destiny Hone in
Seward. She stated that costs associated with the project
were uncertain and that she wanted the funding pulled until
the project was defined and vetted better.

8: 55: 28 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 39 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



JUSTIN FLOVERS, AVTEC STUDENT, SEWARD (via tel econference),
testified in support of fundi ng for constructing
dormtories on the AVTEC canpus and funding for AVTEC s
Applied Technol ogy Departnent budget. He stated that the
current dormtories were old, 1in poor condition, had
unusabl e showers, and contained asbestos. He shared that
the applied technol ogy's pipe welding shop had | eaks in the
roof, poor ventilation, and no heati ng.

8:57: 08 PM

JOSEPH PRI MO, AVTEC STUDENT, SEWARD (via teleconference)
testified in support of f undi ng for constructing
dormtories on the AVIEC canpus and stated that the
facilities on canpus were in shanbles and inadequate. He
urged that the funds were necessary for the success of
Al aska's donestic workforce and pointed out that many AVTEC
graduates worked in jobs that benefitted the state.

8:58: 07 PM

DAVID STORY, SELF, COOPER LANDING (via teleconference),
expressed support for the Cooper Landi ng Wal kabl e Community
pr oj ect and stated that the project would inprove
conditions for non-notorized traffic, protect the Kenai
wat ershed, relieve vehicle congestion, and would inprove
the flow and safety for traffic on the Sterling H ghway

8:59:25 PM

STEVE HI CKS, ALASKA ASSOCI ATI ON OF CONSERVATI ON DI STRI CTS
MAT-SU (via teleconference), testified in support of $1.5
mllion in funding for the Alaska Association of
Conservation Districts and stated that the districts
provided the Departnment of Natural Resources technical
assi stance through soil surveys and wetland determ nations.
He pointed out that the association also provided
mtigation to the mning industry 1in the areas of
conservation planning, invasive plant surveys, and |and
recl amati on. He observed that an erosion survey was being
conpl eted on the Kuskoquim River and that the conservation
districts had been instrunmental in conducting invasive
pl ant surveys and providing assessnments to |land users. He
concluded that the Alaska Association of Conservation
Districts could facilitate the conservation and orderly
devel opment of Alaska's land and water resources through
| ocal self-governnent.

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 40 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



9:01: 50 PM

DICK ZOBEL, SELF, MAT-SU (via teleconference), expressed
his support for the $1.5 mllion in funding for the Al aska
Associ ation  of Conservation Districts and reiterated
previous caller's testinony.

9:02: 40 PM

CHARLES PARKER, ALASKA VILLAGE INTIATIVES, MAT-SU (via
tel econference), testified in support of funding for the
Al aska Moose Federation and urged for increased funding to
i nclude proactive safety measures in conjunction with the
Departnment of Fish and Gane, the Departnment of Public
Safety, and the Departnment of Transportation and Public
Facilities.

9:03:40 PM

PETE WEDI N, SELF, HOMVER (via teleconference), testified in
support of the $2.7 mnmllion for ocean acidification
research at UAF.

9:04:10 PM

DARI US KASPRZAK, OMER AND OPERATOR, F/V MARONA, KODI AK
(via tel econference), expressed support of the $2.7 mllion
for ocean acidification research at UAF. He thought that
ocean acidification was the gravest threat to the future of
the state's comercial, subsistence, and sports fisheries
and pointed out that the research was strongly needed.

#
ADJ QURNVENT
9:05:28 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 9:05 PM

Senat e Fi nance Comm tt ee 41 03/21/12 5:03 P. M



